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VISION 
 

To have sufficient and appropriate 
knowledge and skills available in the Food 

and Beverages Manufacturing Sector in 
order to contribute to: 

•	 the growth and development of the sector;

•	 a safe, healthy, productive and competitive 

industry;

•	 the promotion of access to quality 

education and training for all to participate 

in work and life, and

•	 the redress of past inequalities in 

education and training.

MISSION
The stakeholders of the Food and 

Beverages Manufacturing Sector are 
committed to ensuring that:

•	 relevant and quality learning standards 

and qualifications are available in this 

sector;

•	 a high quality of learning provision is 

maintained in this sector, and

•	 access to knowledge and skills is 

improved for all in the sector.

FoodBev SETA 2013/2014 
ANNUAL REPORT

Dr. Bonginkosi Emmanuel Nzimande
Minister of Higher Education and Training

Mr. Mduduzi Manana
Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training
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CHAIRPERSON’S

Matsobane Komape 
Chairperson of the Accounting Authority

ANNUAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED  2013/2014 

REPORT
The Honourable Minister of Department of Higher Education 

and Training, Dr. BE Nzimande, it gives me pleasure to present 
FoodBev SETAs third Annual Report, since the new landscape, 
which place the SETAs under your leadership. We have witnessed 
with keen interest the persistence, negative perceptions about 
the role and relevance of the SETA, in contributing towards the 
elimination of skills shortage in our country.

Minister, we are fully behind you on every step of the way to 
ensure that we change the negative perceptions about the SETAs, 
by ensuring that they are not used as honey pots, to benefit the 
officials with corrupt tendencies. We will continue to act against 
every individual who is found corrupt or involved in wrong doing. 

We have tightened controls around contract management, to hold 
any company which receives the grant accountable to deliver 
training and to recover costs against those who failed to deliver 
training as per agreements. We have also intensified our fight 
against irregular, wasteful and fruitless expenditures, by ensuring 
that we don’t just take disciplinary action against officials who are 
involved in wrong doing, but also claim the funds back from any 
individual or company which was paid irregularly or the official 
involved. 

Leadership and Oversight
FoodBev SETAs Accounting Authority has continued to provide 
effective leadership to ensure that the SETA implements its goals 
and objectives. Our SETA is governed and managed in accordance 
with its constitution, PFMA, SDA, SDL and other applicable 
legislations. 

Our Board is assisted by subcommittees which are functioning 
effectively and meeting regularly to consider matters referred to 
them by the board and make recommendations to the Accounting 
Authority. We constantly review and update policies such as grant 
policies, finance policies and procedures to ensure they are aligned 
with laws and regulations.

We have strengthened internal controls to ensure that there is 
compliance with the laws and regulations, to eliminate audit 
findings around irregular, wasteful and fruitless expenditures. 
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During the financial year end of 2011/2012, we have 
reported about actions considered against officials 
who were involved in wrong doing, but what is 
disturbing is to find those individuals back in the 
system, employed by other SETAs or State Entities or 
even serving in audit committees of these institutions. 

Our efforts  to change the negative  public perception 
about the SETAs and to create the culture of good 
ethics are undermined by the lack of control systems 
within government institutions to stop individuals 
who are dismissed or resigned from one state entity 
running away from facing charges of misconduct or 
wrong doing. The government, going forward, should 
develop a system of detecting people who have been 
dismissed or resigned from a government entity to 
avoid facing charges and prevent them from joining 
other government entities.

We are happy to present to you the 15th unqualified 
audited report since the inception of the SETA; and 
3rd unqualified audit results, since we took office in 
2011, which is a clear indication of our commitment 
towards achieving vision 2016 of a clean audit.  

We are proud to report that due to our commitment 
and we have witnessed a reduction in number 
of audit findings, irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditures and the emphasis of matter. It pleases 
us that no finding about the lack of leadership and 
oversight from the Auditor General is attributed to the 
Accounting Authority as opposed to the previous two 
financial years.

In the previous financial year the Auditor General in 
the management report, highlighted 54 audit findings 
and 46 of them were resolved. We are in the process 
of implementing recommendations regarding the 
resolution of the remaining 8 findings. 

During this financial year end, the Auditor General, 
in the final management letter has identified only 
11 findings and only one was escalated to the audit 
report. We have already put the process in motion 
to ensure that all the previous and new findings are 
resolved. 

We have achieved the goals set in the Service 
Level Agreement signed between the SETA and 
the Department of Higher Education and Training, 
provided other training interventions outside the SLA, 
such as a special project to train 40 artisans, who 
have all been tested and are declared competent. 
We have also continued to provide bursaries for 
the full tuition fee, for the duration of the study for 
unemployed learners who are enrolled in the study 
in the fields of scarce skills within the Food and 
Beverages Manufacturing Sector. The new bursary 
policy covers the full tuition fee including text 
books, food and accommodation for the duration 
of the study. Our SETA has also supported the 
Minister’s call to contribute towards the infrastructure 
development of public entities and we have 
contributed R25m towards this initiative.

The following management issues were 
communicated to some stakeholders at the AGM and 
through other channels of communications:

In the previous financial year Nokuthula Selamolela 
was CFO and Acting CEO. On 1st October 2013 she 
passed the baton to the newly appointed CEO, Mr 
Mokadi Max Mathye. She played a vital role in rebuild 
ing the organisation, playing dual roles as a CFO and 
an Acting CEO. She successfully managed staffing 
the SETA with a new management team and staff in 
critical positions. There was also improvement on the 
financial and operational controls of the organisation. 

The new CEO, Mr. Mokadi Max Mathye officially 
resumed his duties from 1st October 2013, after 
his appointment was approved by the Cabinet. The 
hand over took place smoothly and the CEO has now 
settled in the driving seat and working closely with 
his management team.  

I would like to thank the CEO and CFO as well 
as the other senior managers and staff for their 
support and contribution towards improvement of 
the performance of the SETA, in particular those 
who tirelessly spend days and night to keep the fires 
burning.
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Allow me to thank members of the Board and Board 
Committees for their leadership and oversight role, 
by governing and managing the SETA, in terms of its 
constitution and by ensuring that there is compliance 
to laws and regulations governing the FoodBev 
SETA.

J M KOMAPE
Chairperson:  FoodBev SETA BOARD
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mokadi Max Mathye
Chief Executve Officer 

ANNUAL 
REPORT
YEAR ENDED  2013/2014 

OFFICER’S REPORT

Overview
I am pleased to present my first report as the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the Food and Beverages Manufacturing Sector 
Education and Training Authority. The report deals with our 
activities and performance in 2013/14. I would also like to provide 
a strategic direction for 2014-2016 terms, which the Accounting 
Authority and the Management Team crafted in January 2014. 
I wish to give the reader a sense of how we plan to continue 
providing skills development interventions in our sector by pursuing 
our corporate motto of “Your Skills Partner.” Much of what we 
will be focusing on is guided by the National Skills Development 
Strategy (NSDS III- 2011 to 2016) and the previous interventions.

The Accounting Authority and Management Team strategy session 
held in January 2014 decided to take stock of the organisation by 
doing a SWOT Analysis with a view of appreciating the mandate of 
the SETA, which ultimately enable us to review our vision, mission 
and values that we intend embracing going forward. 

The following strategic objectives were decided upon:
1. To develop sustainable skills interventions for the Sector;
2. To implement NSDS III specific goals and government  
    priorities;
3. To manage allocated funding in an economic, effective and  
    efficient manner;
4. To promote stakeholder participation and engagement in an  
     efficient and effective manner;
5. To build a sustainable organisation that epitomises best  
    practices. 
 
These objectives will be achieved through the following 
strategic initiatives: 
1.  Collaborating with Stakeholders in identifying appropriate skills  
     required in the industry;
2.  Developing qualifications that are necessary for the sector;
3.  Allocating funds for appropriate learning programmes;
4.  Up-skilling the sector through appropriate learning programmes;
5.  Enhancing and maintaining a high quality of learning    
     interventions in the sector;
6.  On-going research of critical and scarce skills in the sector.
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i) Financial Information
Revenue 
FoodBev receives 80% of the Skills Development Levy 
from the Department of Higher Education. 

Levy income received during the current financial year 
increased by 13% from the prior financial year. 

Interest and penalties
The revenue from interest and penalties, increased 
by 44% from the prior financial year. SARS imposed 
disciplinary fines for those companies who did not 
adhere to the strict deadlines for the payment and 
submission of EMP 201 returns.

Expenditure
Mandatory grants and discretionary grant  
projects expenditure increased by 5% from the 

New employers joined FoodBev SETA during 
the financial year; this resulted in the increase in 
levies received. Increase in salaries of FoodBev 
SETA stakeholders resulted in an increase in levies 
received. 

prior year. This was as a result of appointment of 
key personnel. A lot of critical positions were still 
vacant at the beginning of the financial year. This 
affected the SETAs ability to pay the mandatory and 
discretionary grants. Administration expenditure 
increased by 9% when compared to the prior 
financial year. Key positions that were vacant were 
filled in the third quarter of the financial year.

80%   
Skills 

Development 
Levy 

20% Mandatory Grant

10.5% Administration + QCTO

49.5% Discretionary Grant

 
 
 

 

  African Coloured Indian White 
Foreign 

Nationals 

Total per 

Level 

Occupational Categories M F D M F D M F D M F D M F D M F D 

Top Management 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 

Senior Management 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 

Professionals and Specialists 3 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 7 0 

Junior Managers and 

Supervisors 
1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 3 0 

Semi-skilled Workers 5 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 5 11 1 

Unskilled Workers 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 

Total 13 20 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 3 0 14 25 2 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATISTICS AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

Employment Equity Profile

i) Human Resources
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•	 Eighteen appointments were made during the 
financial year.

•	 There was one retirement during the year.
•	 Three resignations were received and were 

mainly attributed to career development, 
promotions and personal considerations.

ii) Delivery On the NSDSIII Strategic Objectives
a) Sector Skills Plan: 
The Sector Skills Plan provides a thorough analysis 
of developments in the sector and sets out priorities 
and scenarios for the future that are likely to impact 
on skills needs. It further facilitates appropriate 
planning, budgeting and implementation of Skills 
Development within the sector. 

The SSP also examines the economic skills profile of 
the sector, current skills demand and supply, identify 
Scarce and Critical Skills and provides Annual Labour 
market survey as well as the aggregation of the WSP. 

The skills needs and priorities identified in the SSP  
are used as a basis for the development of a 
Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan for the  
sector.  These two documents specify skills 
development targets and supporting budget for the 
achievement of the targets against the Service Level 
Agreement signed between the Department of Higher 
Education and Training and the FoodBev SETA.

In line with the prescribed Calendar for public 
Entities, the FoodBev SETA submitted the annual 
update of the Sector Skills Plan (SSP) 2013/14 on 
the 15th November 2013. The submission was in 
response to the Service Level Agreement signed 
between the Minster of higher Education as well 
as the Accounting authority in compliance with 
requirements as set out by the Skills Development 
Act, National Skills Development Strategy III (NSDS 
III) as well the National Treasury regulations.

Mary-Ann Mosoeunyane
Skills Planning 

Manager

Christopher Khoza
Quality Assurance 

 Manager

Mogopodi Pule
Finance Manager

Fikiswa Ngwendu
Corporate Services  

Manager

Hombisa Caleni
Information Technology 

Manager

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
The organogram below illustrates the management structure of FoodBev SETA.  

Mokadi Max Mathye 
CEO

Nokuthula Selamolela 
CFO
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c. Career Guidance
FoodBev SETA participated in various career 
shows/exhibitions in a bid to create awareness and 
distribute information about careers, career pathways 
and alternative study options to scholars, students, 
SDFs and career guidance specialists.A total number 
of 5,234 career guides were distributed. 

d. Skills Development Support for   
 employees and pre-employed persons
FoodBev SETA annually sets aside a portion of the 
discretionary budget for training of employed people 
in the Food and Beverages Manufacturing Sector.  
The main aim is to  increaseskills in the labour 
force within the sector to improve productivity and 
competitiveness in the local and global markets. This 
need was supported through learnerships, artisan 
programmes, internships and bursaries funded by the 
FoodBev SETA while other interventions are industry 
funded. The details of the learning programmes are 
provided below.

i) Learnerships
Targets are set for employed and unemployed 
Learnerships on an annual basis. Companies are 

approved for grants based on the criteria set for 
implementation and availability of funds from the 
discretionary budget.  In 2013/14 FoodBev SETA 
supported 1,000 employees on Learnerships and 800 
unemployed learners on Learnerships. 

ii) Bursaries
The target for employed bursary holders was 238 
whereemployeesweresupportedto study for an 
undergraduate, post-graduate diplomas/degrees or 
Management Development Programmes. 

The target for unemployed bursary holders was 200 
whereunemployed students who chose fields of 
study classified as scarce and critical in the sector 
and entering 1st year at a higher learning institution 
were sponsored with bursaries. A further 51 
unemployed bursaries were allocated for Research 
and Innovation against a target 50.
 
iii) Skills Programmes
The target forSkills Programme was 500, however 
the target was achieved and exceeded with 522 in 
response to the need from the sector. 

b) Levy paying employers
The Skills Levy Act and the Regulation thereof 
stipulates, “An application for a mandatory grant 
must be submitted by 30 June annually”, however, 
with effect from  01 April 2014, an application for 
Mandatory Grant in terms of sub regulation (1) must 
be submitted by 30 April of each year. The SETA 
makes payment of the Skills Levies to the employer 
who submits a qualifying WSP, ATR as well as the 
PIVOTAL plan and report accordingly. It further 

states that, “A SETA must transfer any unclaimed 
mandatory funds and any interest earned thereon by 
15 August of each financial year into the discretionary 
fund. 

Table 1 below depicts that after the submission of 
Mandatory applications for the 2013/14 financial year, 
581 companies were approved and categorized as 
being eligible for mandatory grants. The target of 558 
set for 2013/14 was achieved and exceeded. 

Organisation size
Large (150+)
Medium (50–149)
Small (1–49)
Total

Actual Achieved
172
169
251 
581

Submission of WSP/ATR by levy paying Companies

 Table 1:   Mandatory Grant applications status: 2013 / 2014.

Target 2013/14
158
151
249
558
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iv) Apprenticeship
The target for apprentice was 110 for Section 13 
(Unemployed) whereby 110 were achieved and a 
target of 20 for Section 28 Apprentices was achieved. 
A further 40 Apprentices were achieved through 
a Special Section 28 project, aim at certifying the 
employees that have the experience.  

v) Young people on internships and work   
 experience
Five hundred and twenty one students (521) were 
funded to gain the appropriate work experience 
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Planned Target
2013/14

 
SSP approved by 
DHET
Companies train 
according to scarce 
skills identified

158 large,
151 medium  and 
249 small companies 
complying 

Sector Skills Guide 
Developed

5,000

Actual Achievement 
2013/14

 
1 SSP approved by 
DHET and companies 
trained according to  
scarce skills identified

172 large, 169 
medium and 251 small 
companies  submitted 
complied 

Guide updated and 
printed

5,234

Strategic objective

 
 
Sector Skills plan 
that  facilitates 
appropriate 
planning, budgeting 
and implementation

Quality workplace 
Skills Plans and 
Annual training 
reports submitted

Sector skills guide 
that cover all career 
paths in the sector

Career guidance 
action plan

No

 
 
1

2

3

4

5.1

5.2

5.3

-

Additional 14 large, 
18 medium and 
2 small companies 
submitted. 

-

+ 234

Targets Reasons

Achieved 

Target Achieved and 
exceeded. 
The stakeholder 
Capacity Building 
interventions increased 
the awareness with 
regard to  
implementation of 
skills development 
participation and access 
to grants within the 
Sector.

Achieved

Achieved and exceeded
This year FoodBev SETA 
engaged more students 
than the previous 
year through career 
exhibitions.

The table below summarises FoodBev SETA performance against set targets:

5. Skills Development Support for employees and pre-employed persons

1,000 employed 
registered on 
Learnerships

800 Unemployed 
registered on 
Learnerships

500 employees 
registered on Skills 
Programmes

1,000 employees 
registered on 
Learnerships  

800 Unemployed 
persons registered on 
Learnerships

522 employees 
registered on skills 
Programmes

Learnership 
Employed  

Learnership 
Unemployed  

Unit Standard 
Based Skills 
Programme 

-

-

+22

Achieved 
 

Achieved 
 

Achieved and exceeded. 
Funds for  additional 
students were available 
within the allocated 
budget

Variance from planned 
actual Achievement for 
2013/14
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Planned Target

2013/14

150 students from 
FET colleges on work 
readiness

50 bursary  students 
in Agricultural school

110 section 13 
apprentices 
registered

20 section 28 
apprentices 
registered

200 bursaries 
awarded to pre-
employed youth

100 Pre-employed  
bursary programmes 
to FET students in 
Rural

100 Pre-employed  
bursary programmes 
to FET students 
-Other

520 people on 
internship programme 
and work experience      
(150 + 370)

153 bursaries 
awarded to 
employees

85 bursaries awarded 
to employees 
on management 
development 

FET College work 
readiness

Agriculture school

Apprenticeship S13

Apprenticeship S28

Bursaries

FET Rural student

FET student other

Work Experience /
Internship 

Bursaries

Bursaries

150 student from 
FET colleges where 
supported

100 bursary students 
in agricultural school

110 section 13 
apprentices 
registered

20 section 13 
apprentices 
registered

200 bursaries 
awarded to pre-
employed youth

100 Pre-employed  
bursaries awarded to 
FET students in Rural

100 Pre-employed  
bursaries awarded to 
FET students -Other

521 people on 
internship programme 
and work experience 
(150 + 371) 

153 bursaries 
awarded to 
employees

94 bursaries awarded 
to employees 
on management 
development 

-

+50

-

-

-

-

-

+1  

-

+9

Achieved

Achieved and 
exceeded due to 
availability  of  funds 
allocated. 

Achieved 

Achieved 

Achieved 

Achieved 

 
Achieved

 
Achieved and 
exceeded. Funds for 
an additional learner 
within budget were 
available 

Achieved

Achieved and 
exceeded. Funds for  
additional students 
were available within 
the allocated budget

Actual Achievement 
2013/14

Strategic objectiveNo

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

Variance from planned 
actual Achievement for 
2013/14

Targets Reasons
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programmes
50 bursaries awarded 
to students involved  
in post graduate 
research and 
Innovation

200 employees on 
Abet programme

4 qualification 
registered with QCTO 
ready for FET/HET 
implementation

Facilitate work  
exposure for 20 FET/
HET college lecture; 5 
company employees 
to lecture at FET 
college

Opening of 3 FET 
College Offices

40 support to NGOs, 
CBOs and Co-ops

130 support to small 
companies

35 support to 
non -levy paying 
companies

Bursaries: Research 
and Innovation

ABET 

Collaboration 
with FET and HET 
institution regarding 
curriculum design

Project that build 
capacity of FET and 
HET institution

Support national 
imperatives

programmes
51bursaries awarded 
to students involved in 
post graduate research 
and innovation

200 employees 
registered on Abet 
programme

-

-

 -3 FET College Offices

42

128

35

+1

-

-4

-20 FET/HET college; 
-5 company 
employees to lecture  
at FET college

+2

-2

-

Achieved and 
exceeded. Funds for 
an additional learner 
within budget were 
available

Achieved

Not achieved. The 
process of developing 
and registering 
qualifications by 
the SETA was not 
completed during the 
period under review.

Not achieved. 

Not achieved. The 
process of opening 
offices was not 
finalised during the 
period under review.

Achieved and 
exceeded. Funds for 
an additional learner 
within budget were 
available

Not achieved, two 
companies did not 
submit the required 
supporting documents 

Achieved

7

9

10

8

6

Planned Target
2013/14

Actual Achievement 
2013/14

Strategic objectiveNo Variance from planned 
actual Achievement for 
2013/14

Targets Reasons

-

 Skills Development Support for employees and pre-employed persons
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e.  Information Technology  projects 
FoodBev SETA acquired an integrated management 
information system that will replace and consolidate 
the current business applications. The new system 
will support the organisation to achieve its goals 
and objectives through automating and integrating 
current business processes. The system will enable 
the organisation to enhance workflow and improve 
efficiency. 

i) IT systems upgrade and offsite server   
 hosting project
FoodBev SETA is in a process of upgrading its local 
area network (LAN) and wide area network (WAN). 
The IT systems upgrade and offsite server hosting 
project is underway.

f. Stakeholder contact 
In February 2014 a series of Provincial Workshops 
designed to enlighten stakeholders on activities and 
priorities of the SETA were held in Gauteng, Western 
Cape and Kwa-Zulu Natal. 

APPRECIATION
I would like to thank my colleagues for their 
dedication, commitment and contribution towards 
skills development in our sector. My thankfulness 
goes to the Accounting Authority for their leadership 
and direction.

Finally, I want to express my appreciation and 
gratitude to the stakeholders for being enduring and 
patient under trying times. For every cloud there is a 
silver lining!!!

Mokadi Max Mathye 
Chief Executive Officer
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The Audit Committee reports that it has complied 
with its responsibilities arising from Section 38 
(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA) and National Treasury Regulations 3.1. 0The 
Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit 
Committee Charter accordance with the requirements 
of Section 77 of the Public Finance Management Act, 
No. 1 of 1999 (“PFMA”) and Treasury Regulations 
27.1.7 and 27.1.10 (b) and (c); has regulated its affairs 
in compliance with this charter and has discharged 
all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The Food & Beverages Manufacturing Sector 
Education & Training Authority (FoodBev SETA) has 
a system of internal control to provide cost-effective 
assurance that the FoodBev SETAs goals will be 
economically, effectively and efficiently achieved. In 
line with the PFMA, the International Standards for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing issued 
by the Institute of Internal Auditors and the King III 
Report on Corporate Governance, Internal Audit 
provided the Audit Committee and Management 
with quarterly internal audit reports in terms of its 
approved annual and three-year rolling Internal Audit 
Plan.

From our review of the various reports of Internal 
Audit, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Management Report of the 
Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA), it was noted 
that there were no material deficiencies in the system 
of internal control for the period under review. 

From our review of the reports of the Internal 
Auditors:
• The internal control systems are effective;
• The Internal Auditors are operating   
 objectively and independently.

Corrective actions have been agreed by Management 
and are being monitored by the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

In line with the PFMA and the King III Report on 
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit 
provides the Audit Committee and Management with 
reasonable assurance that the internal controls are 
adequate and effective. This is achieved by a risk-
based internal audit plan, Internal Audit assessing 
the adequacy of controls mitigating the risks and 
the Audit Committee monitoring implementation of 
corrective actions.  

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit 
quarterly reports to ensure that internal audit 
activities were conducted in terms of the approved 
annual plan. The Committee is satisfied of the 
achievement of the revised annual audit plan by 
internal audit. 

Risk Management

The FoodBev SETA is in the process of establishing 
a process for the management and monitoring of risk 
management. The FoodBev SETA has contracted for 
the provision of a fraud hotline and improvements 
towards an optimum end-to-end risk management 
process have been implemented. The Audit 
committee has reviewed the strategic risk register. 
The Audit Committee is provided with the quarterly 
progress reports on the monitoring of the strategic 
risks by management.

Internal Audit has provided the Audit Committee 
assurance on the effectiveness of the risk 
management system.

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
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•	 reviewed the quality and timeliness of financial 

information availed to the Audit Committee for 
oversight purposes;

•	 reviewed material adjustments resulting from the 
audit of the FoodBev SETA.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the 
AGSA’s opinion regarding the Annual Financial 
Statements and proposes that the audited Annual 
Financial Statements be accepted and read together 
with the report of the AGSA. 

Appreciation

The Audit Committee wishes to express its 
appreciation to the Management of the FoodBev 
SETA, the AGSA and the Internal Audit Unit for the 
co-operation and information they have provided to 
enable us to compile this report.

T Sihlaba
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
5 August 2014

External Audit

We have on a quarterly basis reviewed the FoodBev 
SETAs implementation plan for audit issues raised in 
the prior year. The Audit Committee has met with the 
AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues 
that emanated from the regulatory audit. Corrective 
actions on the detailed findings raised by the AGSA 
will continue to be monitored by the Audit Committee 
on a quarterly basis.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our mandate with regards to the 
Annual Financial Statements as mentioned below.
The Audit Committee has:
•	 reviewed and discussed the unaudited Annual 

Financial Statements to be included in the Annual 
Report, with the AGSA and the Accounting 
Authority;

•	 reviewed the AGSA’s Interim Management Report 
and Management’s response thereto;

•	 reviewed changes to accounting policies and 
practices as reported in the unaudited Annual 
Financial Statements;

•	 reviewed the SETAs processes for compliance 
with legal and regulatory provisions;

•	 reviewed the information on predetermined 
objectives to be included in the Annual Report; 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON FOOD 
AND BEVERAGES MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY SECTOR EDUCATION 

TRAINING AUTHORITY (FoodBev SETA)
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of 
the Food and Beverages Manufacturing Industry 
(FoodBev SETA) set out on pages 28 to 59 which 
comprise of the statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2014, statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets and cash flow 
statement and the statement of comparison of 
budget information with actual information for the 
year ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.  

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the 
financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with the 
South African Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (SA GRAP) and the requirements 
of the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), the Skills 
Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998) (SDA), 
and for such internal control as the accounting 
authority determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with the Public 
Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that I comply with ethical requirements, and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Food and Beverages Manufacturing 
Industry (FoodBev SETA) as at 31 March 2014 and 
its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended, in accordance with Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA) and Skills Development 
Act(SDA).
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7. In accordance with the PAA and the general 
notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following 
findings on the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance 
report, non-compliance with legislation as well as 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to 
identify reportable findings as described under each 
subheading but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the following selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance 
report of the public entity for the year ended 31 
March 2014: 

•	 Objective 1: Skills Plan that facilitates appropriate 

planning, budgeting and implementation  on 

pages 12 to 12

•	 Objective 2: Quality workplace skills plan and 

annual training reports on pages 12 to 12

•	 Objective 5: Skills development support for 

employees and pre-employed persons on pages 

13 to 13

•	 Objective 6: Research and innovations 

programme reports on pages 14 to 14

•	 Objective 9: Appropriate programmes delivered 

by FET and HET institutions on pages 14 to 14

•	 Objective 10: Facilitate the provision of FET and 

HET institution lectures with  industry knowledge 

and exposure institutions on pages 14 to 14

9. I evaluated the reported performance 
information against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. 

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported 

performance information to determine whether it 
was presented in accordance with the National 
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether 
the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well 
defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it was 
valid, accurate and complete.

12. I did not raise any material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected programmes.

Additional matters

13. Although I raised no material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected programmes, I draw 
attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

14. Refer to the annual performance report on 
page(s) 12 to 14 for information on the achievement 
of the planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements

15. I identified material misstatements in the 
annual performance report submitted for auditing on 
the reported performance information of Objective 
5: Skills development support for employees and 
pre- employed persons, Objective 9: Appropriate 
programmes delivered by FET and HET and 
Objective 10: Facilitate the provision of FET and 
HET institution lectures. Management subsequently 
corrected the misstatements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
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Compliance with legislation

16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
that the public entity had complied with applicable 
legislation regarding financial matters, financial 
management and other related matters. My findings 
on material non-compliance with specific matters in 
key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued 
in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

17. The financial statements submitted for 
auditing were not prepared in accordance with 
the prescribed financial reporting framework as 
required by section 55(1) (b) of the Public Finance 
Management Act.  Material misstatements identified 
for irregular expenditure and operating lease 
disclosure notes were subsequently corrected, 
resulting in the financial statements receiving an 
unqualified opinion.

Discretionary commitments

18. There were no written agreements in place 
with specific terms between the SETA and third 
parties whereby the third parties undertakes to 
perform something in relation to a discretionary 
project for which the SETA will be obliged to make 
payments against a discretionary grant as required 
by regulation 1 of the amended Grant Regulations to 
the Skills Development Act.
 
Internal control

19. I considered internal control relevant to 
my audit of the financial statements, the annual 
performance report and compliance with legislation. 

The matters reported below are limited to the 
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted 
in the findings on the annual performance report 
and non-compliance with legislation included in this 
report.

Leadership

20. Discretionary grants policies and procedures 
have not been aligned to the requirements of the 
amended Grant Regulations. 

21. Management did not update the performance 
information policy and develop standard operating 
procedures detailing how performance information 
should be prepared, collected, verified and reported 
in the annual performance report in accordance 
with the framework for managing programme 
performance information.

Financial and performance management

22. Management did not adequately review the 
annual financial statements and annual performance 
report to ensure the accuracy and completeness 
thereof.

Pretoria, 31 July 2014
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i) FoodBev SETA Sector Overview
Companies operating within this sector are clustered  
in line with their industrial activities and are grouped  
according to the following five sub-sectors (Chambers): 

Baking, Cereals, Confectionary & Snacks (BCCS) 

This sub-sector includes the manufacture of breakfast 
foods, bakery products, cocoa, chocolate, sugar-
confectionary and nuts. It is comprised mainly of 
companies involved in salting, baking, drying and 
cooking processes. 

Beverage Manufacturing  

This sub-sector manufactures spirits, beer, malt, soft 
drinks and mineral water, with wine and beer being 
major products. Dr Tienie Ehlers was the elected 
Chairperson of this Chamber.

Dairy Manufacturing  

All dairy products are manufactured by companies in 
this sub-sector including fresh milk, cheese, butter, ice-
cream, yoghurt and edible ice. Mr Willie Prinsloo was 
the elected Chairperson of this Chamber. 

Manufacture of Food Processing  

This is the largest sub-sector and it produces goods 
that are used in making a meal or beverage. Examples 
of these products include noodles, spices and sauces. 
Mr Gerhardus Hamman was the elected Chairperson  
of this Chamber.

Processed and Preserved Meat, Fish, Fruit and 
Vegetables. 
This sub-sector is split into the following: 
•	 Manufacture of prepared and preserved meat, 

canned, processed and dehydrated fruit and 
vegetables, vegetable and animal oils and fats, 
processed fish, crustacean and similar foods,  

•	 Production, processing and preserving of meat 
and meat products  

•	 Slaughtering, dressing and packing of livestock, 
including poultry and small game for meat, lard 
and other edible fats,  

•	 Processing and preserving of fish and fish 
products, fruit and vegetables.  

•	 Mr Keith Smith was elected Chairperson of this 
Chamber. 

ii) Organisational Effectiveness

Board and Board Sub Committees
•	 During the 2013/14 financial year, FoodBev SETA 

Board comprised of: 

•	 6 constituent nominees who represent the 
interests of business;  

•	 6 constituent nominees who represent the 
interests of labour;  

•	 2 ministerial appointees; and  

•	 1 independent chairperson. 

The Board committees, comprising of the Executive 
Committee, Audit Committee, Finance and 
Remuneration Committee and Governance and 
Strategy Committee met on a regular basis and 
provided recommendations to the Board during the 
course of the year.

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY OF FoodBev SETA
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE  
 FoodBev SETA BOARD
The FoodBev SETA Board, as the Accounting 
Authority under the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA), is responsible for ensuring that the annual 
financial statements fairly present the FoodBev 
SETAs financial position as at 31 March 2013 and 
the financial transactions it has conducted during the 
period under review.

The Board has implemented policies and procedures 
to guide the FoodBev SETA management in the 
execution of their duties and has ensured the 
monitoring thereof through regular internal audits. 
The Board believes that the financial management of 
FoodBev SETA has been conducted in accordance 
with FoodBev SETAs financial policies and 
procedures which comply with Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the PFMA.

2. GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF  
 AFFAIRS

SETA Landscape
The Department of Higher Education and Training 
has relicensed FoodBev SETA for the period 01 April 
2011 until 31 March 2016.

3. RISK MANAGEMENT
•	 FoodBev SETA is accountable for the process 

of risk management and the system of 
internal control, which is regularly reviewed for 
effectiveness and for establishing appropriate 
risk and control policies which are communicated 
throughout the FoodBev SETA; 

•	 There is an ongoing process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks 
faced by the FoodBev SETA;  

•	 An adequate system of internal controls is in 
place to mitigate the significant risks faced 
by FoodBev SETA to an acceptable level. The 
system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate the risk and maximize the opportunities 

to achieve business objectives. This system can 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. 

4. CODE OF ETHICS
All staff are required to sign and abide by an ethics 
pledge, and to the knowledge of FoodBev SETA 
Board these standards have been maintained. 

5. OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH, SAFETY AND  
 ENVIRONMENT
•	 FoodBev SETA has adopted an Occupational 

Health and Safety (OHS) Policy in which 
management and staff recognises and accepts 
its legislative responsibilities and, is committed 
to establishing and maintaining an environment 
in which employees continuously improve safety 
and health. 

•	 The organisation is committed to ensuring that 
the requirements of the Occupational Health and 
Safety Act No. 85 of 1993 and Regulations are 
fully met.

•	 The following structures have been established in 
terms of the OHS Policy:

 o  Health and Safety Officer 
 o  Health & Safety Representative 
 o  Health and Safety Committee 
•	 FoodBev SETA has adopted an HIV/AIDS 

policy intended to promote awareness amongst 
employees and prevent discrimination of those 
infected and/or affected by HIV/AIDS.

•	 Due consideration is given to the environment in 
all decision making.

 
6. LEGISLATIVE AND GOVERNANCE   
 FRAMEWORK
FoodBev SETA has been established in terms of the 
Skills Development Act, No. 97 of 1998, as amended 
in 2003.The five Chambers have been established as 
highlighted in the diagram below.

The FoodBev SETA organisational structure has 
been adequate in supporting the achievement of 
NSDS targets over the past 11 years.  A high level of 
institutional knowledge exists that should carry the 
SETA into the new NSDS III landscape.
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THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF FoodBev SETA IS DEPICTED BELOW:

Service level agreement with DHET 

MINISTER 

Public Finance 
Management Act 

Public Audit 
Act

Finance & Remuneration Committee

Governance & Strategy Committee

Skills Development 
Act 

Skills Development 
Levies Act 

Performance
 agreement 

QCTO Act 

FoodBev 
SETA  

BOARD 

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

Baking, Cereals, 
Confectionery & 
Snacks Chamber  

Processed  & 
Preserved  Meat, 

Fish, Fruit 
& Vegetable 

Chamber  

Dairy Chamber  Beverage 
Chamber  

Manufacture of 
Food Preparation 

Products Chamber 

EXCO 

Audit Committee
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a) Develop a sector skills plan within the 
 framework of the national skills   
 development strategy;

b) Implement its sector skills plan by –
i) Establishing learnerships
ii) Approving work place skills plans
iii) Allocating grants in the prescribed manner  
 to employees, education and training   
 providers and workers; and 

c) Promote learnerships by –
i) Identifying workplaces for practical work  
 experience
ii) Supporting the development of learning  
 materials
iii) Improving the facilitation of learning; and
iv) Assisting in the conclusion of learnership  
 agreements 

d)  Register learnership agreements 

e) Within a week from its establishment,  
 apply to the South African Qualifications  
 Authority for accreditation as a body   
 contemplated in section 5(a)(ii)(bb) and  

 must, within 18 months from the date of 
 that application, be so accredited;
 
f) Collect and disburse the skills   
 development levies in its sector 

g) Liaise with the National Skills Authority on –
(i) The national skills development policy
(ii) The national skills development strategy and 
(iii) Its sector skills plan 
 
h) Report to the Director-General on – 
(i) Its outcome and expenditure and
(ii) The implementation of its sector skills plan
i) Liaise with the employment services of the  
 Development and any education body  
 established under any law regulating e 
 education in the Republic to improve   
 information – 
(i) About employment opportunities and 
(ii) Between education and training providers and  
 the labour market
j) Appoint staff necessary for the performance  
 of its functions and 
k) Perform any other duties as imposed by this  
 Act or consistent with the purposes of this Act.

Within the legislative and governance framework as depicted above, and as per the 
Skills Development Act, the functions of the FoodBev SETA are to:
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No

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Organisation

/Sub Sector

Ministerial

FEDCRAW –  

Employee

NUFBSAW – 

Employee

FAWU –  

Employee

FAWU –  

Employee

Food Prep –  

Employer

Sea Harvest –  

Employer

FAWU – 

Employee

United 

Breweries – 

Employer

FAWU – 

Employee

Ministerial

Ministerial

South African 

Breweries –

Employer

Milk SA –

Employer

Race &  

Gender

Black

Male

Black

Male

Black

Male

Black 

Male

Black

Female

White

Male

Coloured  

Male

Black 

Male

Black 

Male

Black 

Male

Asian

Female

Black 

Male

White

Male

White

Male

 A = Absent with apology  P = Present

Meeting  

29/30 April

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Meeting 26 

July 2013

P

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

Meeting 

25 

October 

2013

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

29 

January 

2014

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Member

Jan Matsobane 

Komape

Andile 

Nkosibomvu

Boaz Mashele

Dick Khumalo

Elizabeth Manoto

Gerhardus 

Hamman

Keith Smith

Lancelot Giba

LebonaTsotetsi

Raymond Mnguni

Shahrzad Hone

ThulaniTshabalala

Tienie Ehlers

Willie Prinsloo

Capacity

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE:
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No

1

2

3

4

5

6

No

1

2

3

4

Appointed 
after 
Lebona’s 
Resignation

Organisation

/Sub Sector

Ministerial

FAWU – 

Employee

UB –Employer

NUFBSAW –

Employee

SeaHarvest – 

Employer

South African 

Breweries – 

Employer

Race &  

Gender

Black

Male

Black

Female

Black 

Male

Black 

Male

Coloured 

Male

White 

Male

Race &  

Gender

Black

Male

White Male

Black Male

Black Male

Meeting 

25 April 

2013

P

P

P

P

-

-

Meeting 

22 July 

2013

P

P

P

A

Meeting 

28 June 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

-

Meeting 

18 

March 

2014

P

P

P

A

Meeting 

19 July 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

8 Novem 

ber

2013

P

P

Resigned  

2 Sep ‘13

P

P

P

Meeting 

17 

January 

2014

P

P

P

P

Member

Jan Matsobane 

Komape

Elizabeth Manoto

LebonaTsotetsi

Boaz Mashele

Keith Smith

Tienie Elhers

Member

Lancelot Giba

Willie Prinsloo

Dick Khumalo

ThulaniTshabalala

Capacity

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Capacity

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

EXCO MEMBERS AND MEETING ATTENDANCE:

GOVERNANCE AND STRATEGY MEMBERS AND MEETING ATTENDANCE:

Meeting 

22 Aug 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

P

SUB-COMMITEES 
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No

1

2

3

4

5

No

1

2

3

4

5

6

Race &  

Gender

Black

Male

White

Male

Black Male

Asian 

Female

White Male

Race &  

Gender

Black
Female

White
Female

White Male

Black Male

 
Black Male

Black Male 

Meeting 

16 April 

2013

P

P

P

P

-

Meeting 

09 MAY 

2013

P

A

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

27 May 

2013

P

P

P

P

-

Meeting 

27 May 

2013

P

A

P

A

P

P

Meeting 

20 June 

2013

P

A

P

P

P

Meeting 

23 JuL 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

17 July 

2013

P

P

P

P

A

Meeting 

16 Oct 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

2 Oct 

2013

P

P

P

P

P

Meeting 

14 Jan 

2014

P

P

P

P

P

Member

Andile 

Nkosibomvu

Gerhardus 

Hamman

Raymond Mnguni

Shahrzad Hone

Tienie Ehlers

Member

Thandi Sihlaba

Janice Meissner

Willie Prinsloo

Moshupi  
Mokgobiyane

Andile  
Nkosibomvu

Sibusiso Majola

Capacity

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Capacity

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Member 

Member

FINANCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE:

AUDIT COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE:

Meeting 

20 Aug 

2013

A

P

P

P

A

Meeting 

15 Jan

2014

P

A

P

P

P

P

8. REMUNERATION

Accounting Authority Members
A fee is payable to the members of the Board and it’s Sub Committees per the approved Board and Sub 
Committee Remuneration policy that has been implemented with effect from 01 April 2013. FoodBev SETA pays 
for all subsistence and travel expenses.
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concern basis and have been reviewed by the 
Accounting Authority. The Accounting Authority 
has accepted the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and submits the annual financial 
statements for auditing in terms of section 55(c) of 
the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No. 1 of 
1999. 

J M KOMAPE
Chairperson:  FoodBev SETA BOARD 

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  
Remuneration is determined by the Remuneration & Finance Committee and is approved by the FoodBev  
Board annually.

EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION DATE
No significant events occurred after the Statement of 
Financial Position date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Audit Committee reviewed the annual financial 
statements on 23 May 2014 and recommended the 
submission of the unaudited AFS to the Board for 
submission to the Auditor General. 
REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2014, have been prepared on the going 

Travel 

Allowance

R25,000

R25,200

R50,200

Entertainment 

Allowance

-

-

-

Cellphone 

Allowance

R1,000

R500

R1500

Performance 

Bonus

-

-

-

Provident 

Fund

R100,523

R86,190

R186,713

TOTAL 

SALARY 

F2012/13

R1,508,857

R1,293,359

R2,802,216

Position

CEO

CFO

TOTAL

Basic  

(incl. Annual 

Bonus)

R1,507,857

R1,292,859

R2,800,716

Medical 

Aid

-

-

-

THE ANNUAL REMUNERATION IS PER TABLE BELOW:

No

1

2

3

4

5

Meeting Fees per 

meeting per day

R4,360

R3,392

R3,704

R3,704

R3,392

Board Fees(calculated at 8% of 

the full time remuneration p.a)

 R87,807

R68,270

-

-

-

Committee

Chairperson of the Board 

Board Member 

Chairperson of other Subcommittees

Chairperson of other Audit and Risk Committees

Audit and Risk Committee members 

Rate Per 

Hour 

R545

R424

R463

R463

R424

FEES TO BOARD MEMBERS AND SUBCOMMITEES WERE MADE AS FOLLOWS:
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REVENUE  
 Non-Exchange Revenue 
 Skills Development Levy: income 
 Skills Development Levy: penalties and interest  
 Government Grants and other Donor funding: revenue 

 Exchange Revenue 
 Investment income 
 Other income 
Total revenue  
EXPENSES  
 Employer grant and project expenses 
 Administration expenses 
 Government Grants and other Donor Funding: expenditure 
 Total expenses  
  
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  
   

Note

2013/14
R’000

2012/13
R’000

3
4
16

5
6

7
8
16

2

 252 347 
 249 706 

 2 641 
 - 

 14 273 
 13 130 
 1 143 

 266 620 

 (139 533)
 (24 288)
 (25 087)

 (188 908)

 77 712 

 223 278 
 221 343 

 1 840 
 95 

 9 915 
 9 152 

 763 
 233 193 

 (132 696)
 (22 289)

 (95)
(155 080) 

 78 113 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
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ASSETS   
Current assets   
 Prepayments and advances  
 Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions 
 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions  
 Inventory  
 Cash and cash equivalents
  
Non-current assets   
 Property, plant and equipment  
 Intangible Assets   
Total Assets   
   
LIABILITIES   
Current liabilities   
 Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions  
 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions  
 National Skills Fund received in advance  
 Provisions  
Total Liabilities 
Net Assets   
   
NET ASSETS   
 Administration reserve  
 Employer grant reserve  
 Discretionary reserve  
Total Net Assets   

Note

2013/14
R’000

2012/13
R’000

11
12
12
13
14

 
9
10

15
15
16
17

 358 588 
 3 517 

 118 
 788 
 72 

 354 093
 

 1 356 
 1 136 

 220
 359 944 

 
53 225 
 5 683 

 45 351 
 151 

 2 040 
 53 225 

 306 719 

 2 556 
 - 

 304 163 
 306 719

-  

 281 827 
 7 476 

 260 
 2 335 

 38 
 271 718

 
 1 640 
 1 112 

 528
 283 467 

 
54 461 
 45 278 
 5 766 

 151 
 3 266 

 54 461 
 229 006 

 1 112 
 63 

 227 831 
 229 006 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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REVENUE  
Balance at 31 March 2012
Surplus per Statement of Financial Performance 
Allocation of unappropriated deficit
Excess reserves transferred to Discretionary reserve
Balance at 31 March 2013
Surplus per Statement of Financial Performance
Allocation of unappropriated surplus 
Excess reserves transferred to Discretionary reserve 
Balance at 31 March 2014 

The transfer between reserves is as per the stipulation in the Skills Development Act which requires surplus fund from administration reserves 
and any unclaimed mandatory grants to be transferred to the discretionary grant reserve and is done on the accrual basis of accounting.

Adminis-
tration  
reserve
R’000

Employer 
grant 

reserve
R’000

Discretion-
ary grant 
reserve
R’000

Total
R’000

Accumulated 
surplus
R’000

Notes

2

-
 -

33 100
(33 037)

63
-

13 587
(13 650)

-

148 529
-

39 987
39 315

227 831
-

55 939
20 393

304 163

150 893 
78 113

  - 
- 

229 006
77 712

- 
-

306 718

-
78 113

(78 113)
-
-

77 712
(77 712)

-
-

2 364
-

5 026
(6 278)
1  112

-
8 187

(6 743)
2 556

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Operating activities   
 Cash receipts from stakeholders  
 Levies, interest and penalties received  
 Other cash receipts from stakeholders  
 
 Cash paid to stakeholders, suppliers and employees   
 Grants and project payments 
 Special projects  
     Compensation of employees  
 Payments to suppliers and other  
        
 Cash utilised in operations  
 Interest Received  
Net cash inflow from operating activities   
   
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment
 Proceedds from disposal pf property, plant and equipment and investment properties
 Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash (outlow) from investigating activities

 Net increase in cash and cash euivalents 
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Note

2013/14
R’000

2012/13
R’000

18 
5 

9

10

14
14 

259 138
257 995

1 143

(189 431)
(180 354)
(25 087)
(12 911)

28 921

69 707
13 130
82 837

(442)
13

(33)
(462)

82 375
271 718
354 093

218 089
217 326 

763

(124 841)
(104 670)

(95)
(11 698)
(8 378)

93 248
9 152

102 400

(4)
- 
-

(4)

102 396
169 322 
271 718

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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REVENUE  
 Non-Exchange Revenue 
 Skills Development Levy: income 
 Skills Development Levy: penalties and interest 
  
 Exchange Revenue 
 Investment income 
 Other income 
 Total revenue  
  
EXPENSES  
 Employer grant and project expenses 
 Administration expenses 
 Government Grants and other Donor Funding: expenditure 
Total expenses  
  
(DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  

Approved 
Budget
2013/14
R’000

Final Budget
2013/14
R’000

Actual
2013/14
R’000

Favourable/ 
(Unfavourable)

2013/14
R’000

28.1
28.2

28.3
28.3

28.4
28.5
28.6

 241 055 
 238 935 

 2 120 

 112 000 
 8 500 

 103 500 

 353 055 

 (218 744)
 (31 111)

 (103 200)
 (353 055)

 -

 252 347 
 249 706 

 2 641 

 14 273 
 13 130 
 1 143 

 266 620 

 (139 533)
 (24 288)
 (25 087)

 (188 908)

 77 712 

 11 292 
 10 771 

 521 

 (97 727)
 4 630 

 (102 357)

 (86 435) 

 79 211 
 6 823 

 78 113 
 164 147 

 77 712 

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

 241 055 
 238 935 

 2 120 

 8 800 
 8 500 

 300 

 249 855 

 (218 744)
 (31 111)

 - 
 (249 855)

 - 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
         
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices 
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. The implementation of the new 
GRAP standards has not resulted in any change in accounting policy. 
     
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and are, in all material 
respects, consistent with those of the previous year, except as otherwise indicated.      
 
1.1 Basis of preparation
 The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where adjusted for fair values as
 required by the respective accounting standards.  

1.2 Functional and Presentation Currency       
 These financial statements are presented in South African Rands which is FoodBev SETAs functional currency. Furthermore all  
 figures presented are rounded of to the nearest thousand      
          
1.3 Revenue recognition       
 Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these benefits can be  
 measured reliably. This occurs when when DHET  either makes an allocation or payment of levies, whichever comes first.

1.4 Levy income       
 In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), registered member companies  
 of the FoodBev SETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African Revenue Services  
 (SARS).   

 Eighty percent (80%) of skills development levies are paid over to the FoodBev SETA (net of the 20% contribution to the National  
 Skills Fund). 
      
 Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefit will flow to the SETA  
 and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) either  
 makes an allocation or payment, whichever occurs first, to the SETA, as required by Section 8 of the Skills Development Levies  
 Act, 1999 (Act No.9 of 1999). The SDL transfer is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable or received 

 Revenue is adjusted for inter FoodBev SETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately dis 
 closed as InterSETA transfers. The amount of the inter SETA adjustment is calculated according to the Standard Operating  
 Procedure issued by DHET.         
          
 When a new employer is transferred to the FoodBev SETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue  
 and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity. Employers who have annual payrolls below R500k are  
 exempted from further payment of skills development levies. In cases where payments have been made by these employers, an  
 accrual is made for the refund of the levies should an employer request a refund.  

1.5 Interest and penalties       
 Interest and penalties on the skills development levy is recognised when it accrues based on the amount received or allocation  
 made by DHET.         
          
1.6 Government Grants and other donor funding         
 Funds transferred by the Government and other donor funding are accounted for in the financial statements of the FoodBev  
         SETA as a liability until the related eligible expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and revenue recognised. 
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 An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes receivable.  
       
          
 Other government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they  
 will be received and the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.      
    
          
 As FoodBev SETA satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non- 
 exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognise an  
 amount of revenue equal to that reduction.         
          
1.7 Investment income        
 Investment income comprises of interest income on funds invested and is accrued using the effective interest method.   
 Interest from investments is recognised when the bank has credited the investment with interest due in line with the maturity date  
 of the investment.         
          
1.8 Grants and project expenditure     
 Mandatory grants        
 The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submitted an application for a grant  
 in the prescribed form within the agreed upon time-frame and before the cut-off date and the application has been approved as  
 the payment then becomes probable.  The grant is equivalent to 20% (prior period: 50%) of the total levies paid by the employer  
 during the corresponding financial period.          
          
 Discretionary grants & Project Expenditure    
 A SETA may out of any surplus funds determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education and training providers  
 and employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon  
 time-frame and before the cut-off date.   The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the application has  
 been approved, training has taken place and conditions have been met.      
   
 Project expenditure comprise:         
 - costs that relate directly to the specific contract;          
 - costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and
 - such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the FoodBev SETA under the terms of the contract.   
      
 Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs having similar  
 characteristics.          
          
 Discretionary Grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.  A receivable is  
 recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable for incentive and other payments made to the extent of  
 expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.        
          
1.8.1 Provisions for grants          
          
 Grant payments       
 A provision is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills Development  
 Act, (Act no.97 of 1998) has been complied with by member companies and it is probable that the FoodBev SETA will make the  
 relevant payments.  The measurement of the obligation is based on the levies received.     
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 Projects        
 No provision is made for projects approved at year-end, unless the service in terms of the contract has been delivered or the  
 contract is of an onerous nature. Where a contract has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided for,  it is  
 disclosed as commitments in the notes to the financial statements.         
  
          
1.9 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure   
 Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable  
 legislation, including: 
          
 - The PFMA,         
 - The Skills Development Act,         
	 -	The	Materiality	and	Significance	Framework	approved	by	the	FoodBev	SETA	Council	     
        
 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care  
 been exercised.         
          
 All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised against the respective class of expense and disclosed in a note  
 in the financial statements when it has been identified. 

1.10 Property, plant and equipment     
 Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment  
 losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to  
 the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and  
 equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and  
 equipment.    
       
 Subsequent costs  
 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if  
 it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the SETA and its cost can be measured  
 reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and  
 equipment are recognised in surplus or deficit as incurred.        
        
 Depreciation         
 Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item  
 of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life, unless it  
 is reasonable certain that the SETA will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.     
           
 The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:     
 -	Computer	equipment	 	 	 5			-		9	years	 	 	 	 	 	
	 -	Office	furniture	and	fittings	 	 	 8			-		11	years	 	 	 	 	 	
	 -	Office	equipment	 	 	 	 5			-			11	years      
          
 The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually and  
 altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. The depreciation charge is recognised in the surplus or  
 deficit of the organisation.         
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 Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the  
 carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in surplus or deficit.    
1.11 Intangible Assets        
 Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any  
 subsequent accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it  
 increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.      
        
 Amortisation         
 Amortisation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from  
 the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life for the current and comparative periods is as follows:  
          
 -	Intangible	Assets	(Computer	software)	 	 5		-		10	years	      
          
 The amortisation method and useful lives of items of intangible assets is reviewed annually and altered if circumstances or  
 expectations have changed significantly.    
          
 Gains and losses on disposal of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying  
 amount of intangible assets and are recognised in surplus or deficit.       
   
1.12 Leasing  
      
 Finance Lease       
 Leases in terms of which the SETA assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 
        
 Assets held under finance leases and the corresponding liability are initially recognised at their present value of the minimum  
 lease payments at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Statement of Financial  
 Position as a finance lease obligation. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the  
 accounting policy applicable to that asset. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the  
 finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total  
 leasing commitments and the estimated present value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term  
 of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the obligations for each  
 accounting period.         
          
 Operating Lease        
 Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as  
 operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight  
 line basis over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total expense, over  
 the term of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be  
 made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which the termination takes place.  
 
1.13 Impairment
            
1.13.1	 Impairment	of	Non-financial	assets	         
 The carrying amounts of the SETAs non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to  
 determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is  
 estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less  
 costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount  
 rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of  
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 impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing  
 use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).  

 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable  
 amount. Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units  
 are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.     
    
 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has   
 decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine  
 the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed  
 the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been  
 recognised.         
          
1.13.2	 Impairment	of	financial	assets	         
          
 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired.  
 A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect  
 on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.  
        
 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying  
 amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually  
 significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed  
 collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.  
        
 An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was  
 recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
          
1.14 Provisions        
 Provisions are recognised when the FoodBev SETA has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event  
 and it is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. Provisions are measured  
 at managements best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to  
 present value where the effect of time value of money is material.       
  
 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present  
 obligations where the transfer of economic benefits is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not  
 recognised but disclosed, unless they are remote.        
 
1.15	 Employee	benefits       
 The cost of employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Employee  
 benefits are recognised when they accrue to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services  
 rendered by employees up to the reporting date.          
          
1.15.1	 Short	term	employee	benefits	        
 The cost of short term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service and  
 expensed when the fall due.         
 A liability is recognised for the amount that is expected to be paid under short term cash bonus if the organisation has a present  
 legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services provided by the employee and the obligation can  
 be estimated reliably. 
        
 The accruals for employee entitlements to wages, incentives, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the  
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 company has a present obligation to pay as a result of past services provided up to the reporting date. The accruals have been  
 calculated at amounts based on current salaries and wages.       
  
1.15.2	 Termination	Benefits         
 Termination benefits are recognised and expensed as they fall due.        
   
1.15.3	 Post	Employment	Benefit	Costs         
 The FoodBev SETA provides for a Provident Fund for all its employees through a defined contribution plan. Payments to the fund  
 are charged as part of salary expense as they fall due.        
      
1.15.4	 Medical	Benefits         
 The FoodBev SETA provides medical benefits as part of the cost to company package given to its employees. Payments are  
 charged as a salary expense as they fall due.         
          
1.16 Financial instruments  
     
 Recognition       
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the FoodBev SETAs Statement of Financial Position sheet when the  
 FoodBev SETA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.     
      
 All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are initially recognised using trade date accounting.   
 
 Measurement       
 Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of  
 the financial asset/liability. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as set out below.  
       
 Financial assets       
 The FoodBev SETAs principal financial assets are account receivables and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.  
         
 Accounts	and	other	receivables
     
 Accounts and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest  method. Impairment losses  
 are recognised in an allowance account where the carrying value exceeds the present value of estimated future cash flows  
 discounted using the original effective interest rate, less any impairment losses.      
    
 Cash	and	cash	equivalents         
          
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, call deposits and petty cash.

 Financial liabilities       
 The FoodBev SETAs principal financial liabilities are accounts and other payables.     
    
 All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debts less principle payments and amortisations. 
   
 Derecognition       
 “A financial asset or a portion thereof is derecognised when the FoodBev SETA realises the contractual rights to the benefits  
 specified in the contract, the rights expire, the FoodBev SETA surrenders those rights or otherwise loses control of the   
 contractual rights that comprise the financial asset. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial  
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 asset and the sum of the proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect the fair value of the asset that had been  
 reported in Net Assets is included in net surplus or deficit for the period.

 A financial liability or a part thereof is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or  
 expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability, including related unamortised  
 costs, and the amount paid for it is included in net surplus or deficit for the period.” 
 
 Fair value considerations      
 The fair values at which financial instruments are carried at the reporting date have been determined using available market  
 values.  Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at  
 prevailing interest rates.  The fair values have been estimated using available market information and appropriate valuation  
 methodologies, but are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the FoodBev SETA could realise in the normal course  
 of business.  The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of less than one year arebased on  
 cost as fair value due to the short-term trading cycle of these items. 
 
 Offsetting        
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset if there is any intention to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously  
 and a legally enforceable right to set off exists. 
    
1.17 Net Assets         
          
 Net Assets is sub-classified in the Statement of Financial Position between the following reserves:    
     
 -  Administration reserve         
	 -		Employer	grant	reserve	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 -  Discretionary grant reserve         
          
 This sub-classification is made based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of funds received in accordance with the  
 Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998). 

 Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act and the regulations issued in  
 terms of the Act, for the purpose of:         
           %         %  
          
 Administration costs of the SETA    10,5        10  
 Employer Grant Fund Levy        20        50  
 Discretionary grants and projects    49,5        20  
           80        80  
          
 In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of government may be  
 used to pay for the SETAs administration costs.           
          
 Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilised for discretionary grants and  
 projects.          
 The surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory grant reserve and the discretionary fund reserve. 
 
 The transfer between reserves is as per the stipulation in the Skills Development Act which requires surplus fund from   
 administration reserves and any unclaimed mandatory grants to be transferred to the discretionary grant reserve and is done on  
 the accrual basis of accounting. 
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1.18 Inventory         
 Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis.   
        
1.19 Related Party Transactions       
 The SETA operates in an environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African   
 Government. As a result of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of Government in South Africa, only parties  
 within the national sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.     
    
 Key management is defined as individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities  
 of the SETA. We regard all individuals from the level of executive management up to the Council as key management per the  
 definition of IPSAS 20.
         
 Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be influenced by  key  
 management individuals in their dealings with the SETA. 
 
1.20	 Comparative	figures      
 Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.   
        
1.21 Commitments       
 Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial 
 performance but are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. 
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2 ALLOCATION OF SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR TO RESERVES:

Total revenue  
     Skills development levy: income 
     Admin levy income (10.5%) 
     Grant levy income (69.5%) 
     Skills development levy: penalties and interest 
     National Skills Fund income/Infrastracture support 
     Investment income 
     Other Income 
 
Total expenses
     Administration expenses
     National Skills Fund income/Infrastracture support
     Employer grants and project expenses
Net surplus per Statement of Financial  
Performance allocated

Total revenue  
     Skills development levy: income
          Admin levy income (10%)
          Grant levy income (70%)
     Skills development levy: penalties and interest
     National Skills Fund income
     Investment income
     Other Income
 
Total expenses
     Administration expenses
     Government grants & other donor funding
     Employer grants and project expenses
Net surplus per Statement of Financial  
Performance allocated

Total per 
State-

ment of 
Financial 
Perfor-
mance

Total per 
State-

ment of 
Financial 
Perfor-
mance

Employer grants reserve Employer grants reserve

2014

2013

Admin-
istration 
reserve

Admin-
istration 
reserve

Manda-
tory skills 
planning 

grant

Manda-
tory skills 
planning 

grant

Discre-
tionary 
grants 

Discre-
tionary 
grants 

Total

Total

Special 
projects 

Govt.
Grants

Spe-
cial 
pro-
jects 
Govt.

Grants

Total 
discre-
tionary

Total 
discre-
tionary

 266 620 

 32 475 
 217 231 

 2 641 
 - 

 13 130 
 1 143 

 188 908 
 24 288 
 25 087 

 139 533 

 77 712 

 233 193 

 27 315 
 194 028 

 1 840 
 95 

 9 152 
 763 

 155 080 
 22 289 

 95 
 132 696 

 78 113 

 32 475 

 32 475 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 24 288 
 24 288 

 - 
 - 

 8 187 

 27 315 

 27 315 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 22 289 
 22 289 

 - 
 - 

 5 026 

 153 443 

 - 
 136 529 

 2 641 
 - 

 13 130 
 1 143 

 97 505 
 - 

 25 087 
 72 418 

 55 939 

 67 400 

 - 
 55 645 
 1 840 

 - 
 9 152 

 763 

 27 412 
 - 
 - 

 27 412 

 39 988 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

  95 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 95 
 - 
 - 

 95 
 - 

 95 
 - 

 - 

 153 443 

 - 
 136 529 

 2 641 
 - 

 13 130 
 1 143 

 97 505 
 - 

 25 087 
 72 418 

 55 939 

 67 495 

 - 
 55 645 
 1 840 

 95 
 9 152 

 763 

 27 507 
 - 

 95 
 27 412 

 39 988 

 80 702 

 - 
 80 702 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 67 115 
 - 
 - 

 67 115 

 13 587 

 138 384 

 - 
 138 384 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 105 284 
 - 
 - 

 105 284 

 33 100 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 80 702 

 - 
 80 702 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 67 115 
 - 
 - 

 67 115 

 13 587 

 138 384 

 - 
 138 384 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 105 284 
 - 
 - 

 105 284 

 33 100 
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3. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY INCOME

4 INTEREST & PENALTIES

6 OTHER INCOME

5 INVESTMENT INCOME

The total levy income transfer per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:
Levy income transfer: Administration
      Levies received from SARS
      InterSETA transfers in
      InterSETA transfers out

Levy income transfer: Employer Grants
      Levies received from SARS
      InterSETA transfers in
      InterSETA transfers out

Levy income transfer: Discretionary Grants
      Levies received
      InterSETA transfers in
      InterSETA transfers out

Interest
Penalties

Other income comprises:
   Other
Grant Recovery from employers

Interest income

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

 32 475 
 32 460 

 15 
 - 

 80 702 
 80 640 

 62 
 - 

 136 529 
 136 488 

 41 
 - 

 249 706 

 930 
 1 711 
 2 641 

  38 
 1 105 
 1 143 

 13 130 

 27 314 
 27 279 

 37 
 (2)

 138 384 
 138 313 

 75 
 (4)

 55 645 
 55 466 

 188 
 (9)

 221 343 

 830 
 1 010 
 1 840 

  97 
 666 
 763 

 9 152 

Penalties are levied by SARS on Employers at a rate of 10% of the amount due, who pay their Skills Development 
Levy after the due date as legislated. Interest accrues at the prescribed rate of 10.5% per annum.
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7 EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES

Mandatory grants
Disbursed
      Movement in provisions and accruals 

Discretionary grants
      Disbursed

Project expenditure
Disbursed

7.1			Project	expenditure	consist	of:	
        Direct salaries and wages
        Direct Project Administration expenses
        SSP Research
        Scarce Skills Guide
        Advertising, Promotions & Publicity material
        Catering & Event Hosting
        Consulting Fees
        External Moderation
        Travel & Accommodation
        Project Management
        Other administration expenses

2013/14
R’000

Note 2012/13
R’000

 67 115 
 106 215 
 (39 100)

 69 261 
 69 261 

 3 157 
 3 157 

 139 533 

1.7

 2 186 
  971 

 7 
 86 
 19 
 48 
 6 

 589 
 215 

 - 
 1 

 3 157 

 105 284 
 76 102 
 29 182 

 23 219 
 23 219 

 4 193 
 4 193 

 132 696 

 3 267 
  926 

 - 
 144 
 56 
 50 
 3 

 373 
 218 
 32 
 50 

 4 193 
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8 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Depreciation  
Amortisation  
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment recognised/(reversed)  
   Rent on land and non-produced assets  
   Operating lease rentals  
Buildings  
Plant, machinery and equipment  
Vehicles  
   Maintenance, repairs and running costs  
Property and buildings  
Advertising, marketing and promotions, communication  
Entertainment expenses  
Consultancy and service provider fees  
Legal fees  
Cost of employment  
Travel and subsistence  
Staff training and development  
Remuneration to members of the accounting authority  
Remuneration to members of the audit committee  
External auditor’s remuneration  
      Audit fees  
Debtors Impairment  
Other  
IT expenses  
Internal Audit Fees  
Postage & Courier  
Recruitment Costs  
Stationery & Printing  
Conference/Strategic Planning/Venue Hire  
SETA functional costs  
Less:  amounts allocated to project expenditure  

2013/14
R’000

Note 2012/13
R’000

8.1

 402 
 342 

 - 
 - 

 1 918 
 1 727 

 191 
 - 

 91 
 91 

 989 
 1 

 461 
 3 436 
 9 963 

 827 
 61 

 1 958 
 61 

 1 018 
 1 018 

 - 
 4 028 
 1 313 

 886 
 45 
 30 

 176 
 5 

 1 573 
 (3 267)
 22 289 

 386 
 341 
 20 

 - 
 - 

 2 000 
 1 726 

 274 
 - 

 87 
 87 

 1 141 
 1 

 1 239 
 58 

 12 653 
 797 
 208 

 1 966 
 83 

 1 683 
 1 683 

 258 
 3 553 
 1 239 

 706 
 35 

 273 
 62 
 4 

 1 234 
 (2 186)
 24 288  
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8.1	 Cost	of	employment

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013/14
R’000

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Note 2012/13
R’000

Closing 
carrying 
amount 
R’000

Closing 
carrying 
amount 
R’000

Cost
R’000

Cost
R’000

 11 163 
 11 163 
 1 490 

 291 
 1 199 

 12 653 

 10 467 
 2 186 

 12 653 

 40 

 (1 086)
 (673)
 (844)

 (2 603)

 (2 603) 

 (1 099)
 (618)
 (767)

 (2 484)

 (2 141)
 (343)

7
8

 8 422 
 8 422 
 1 541 

 311 
 1 230 
 9 963 

 6 696 
 3 267 
 9 963 

 24 

 517 
 201 
 418 

 1 136 

 1 136 

 380 
 252 
 480 

 1 112 

 1 062 
 50 

 1 603 
 874 

 1 262 
 3 739 

 3 739 

 1 479 
 870 

 1 247 
 3 596 

 3 203 
 393 

Salaries and wages 
   Basic salaries 
Social contributions 
   Medical aid contributions 
   Pension contributions: defined contribution plans 
 
Allocation of cost of employment 
Administration expenses 
Project expenses 
 
 
Average number of employees 

Year ended 31 March 2014 
Computer equipment 
Office furniture and fittings 
Office equipment 
Balance at end of period 
Made up as follows: 
- Owned assets

Year ended 31 March 2013 
Computer equipment 
Office furniture and fittings 
Office equipment 
Balance at end of period 
Made up as follows: 
- Owned assets 
- Lease assets 

Refer to the report by the Accounting Authority for disclosure concerning the emoluments of 
members of the Accounting Authority, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer.
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Computer equipment 
Office furniture and fittings 
Office equipment 
Balance at end of period 
Movement summary 2013 

Computer equipment 
Office furniture and fittings 
Office equipment 
Balance at end of period 

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2012
 R’000 

Additions
R’000

Additions
R’000

Disposals
R’000

Disposals
R’000

Deprecia-
tion/  

Amorti-
sation 
charge
R’000

Deprecia-
tion/  

Amorti-
sation 
charge
R’000

Accu-
mulated 
Depre-

ciation on 
disposals

R’000

Accu-
mulated 
Depre-

ciation on 
disposals

R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2014
R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

 380 
 251 
 481 

 1 112 

 635 
 305 
 570 

 1 510 

 422 
 5 

 16 
 442 

 - 
 - 
 4 
 4 

 (297)
 - 
 - 

 (297)

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 (255)
 (54)
 (78)

 (386)

 (255)
 (54)
 (93)

 (402)

 265 
 - 
 - 

 265 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 515 
 202 
 419 

 1 136 

 380 
 251 
 481 

 1 112 

Movement summary 2014

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Closing 
carrying 
amount 
R’000

Closing 
carrying 
amount 
R’000

Cost
R’000

Cost
R’000

 (2 141)
 (2 141)

 (2 141) 

 (2 027)
 (2 027)

 (2 027)

 220 
 220 

  220 

 528 
 528 

 528 
 - 

 2 361 
 2 361 

 2 361 

 2 555 
 2 555 

 2 555 

Year ended 31 March 2014 
Intangible Assets 
Balance at end of period 
Made up as follows: 
- Owned assets 

Year ended 31 March 2014 
Intangible Assets 
Balance at end of period 
Made up as follows: 
- Owned assets 
- Lease assets  
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Intangible Assets 
Balance at end of period 

Intangible Assets 
Balance at end of period 

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

Restated      
Carrying 
Amount
 R’000 

Additions
R’000

Revaluation 
adjustments

 R’000 

Disposals
R’000

 

Disposal 
 R’000 

 

Amortisation 
charge
R’000

 

Amortisation 
charge
R’000

Accumulated  
Amortisation 
on disposals

R’000

Accumulated 
Amortisation 
on disposals

R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2014
R’000

Carrying 
amount            

2013
R’000

  528 
  528 

  870 
  870 

  33 
  33 

 ( 227) 
 ( 227) 

 ( 341) 
 ( 341) 

 ( 342) 
 ( 342) 

  227 
  227 

  220 
  220 

  528 
  528 

Movement summary 2014

Movement summary 2013

11 PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

12 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

Note

Note

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

 3 509 
 9 

 3 517 

  118 
  15 
  74 
  29 

 788 
 622 
 165 

 - 

 905 

12.1

 7 468 
 8 

 7 476 

  260 
  32 

  164 
  64 

 2 335 
 1 510 

 45 
 781 

 2 595 

Discretionary Grants Prepaid 
Deposits 
Closing balance 

Non Exchange Transactions
InterSETA debtors
   Admin Grant Levy debtors
   Employer Grant Levy debtors
   Discretionary Grant Levy debtors

Exchange Transactions
Other receivables from Employers 
Payments in  Advance
Investment Interest Receivable
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2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

Note

Note

Note

Note

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

 4 613 
 (3 995)

 619 
 4 
 - 

 622 

 72 

 66 893 
 66 890 

 3 
 287 200 
 354 093 

 5 683 
 - 
 - 

 5 683 
 - 

 268 
 45 084 
 45 084 

 - 
 45 352 

  
  
  

15,1 
 

 5 245 
 (3 736)

 1 508 
 1 
 1 

 1 510 

 38 

 52 914 
 52 912 

 2 
 218 804 
 271 718 

 41 528 
 3 253 

 497 
 45 278 

 1 787 
 3 979 
3 979 
 238 

 5 766

Other receivables from Employers 
Grant Recovery from Employers
Less Debtors Allowance
Net Grant Recoverable from Employers
Sundry Debtors
Staff Advances

Consumable Stores

Cash at bank and in hand
   Cash at bank
   Cash on hand - Petty cash
Short term investments/instruments
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Non Exchange Transactions 
Skills development grants payable - mandatory 
SARS Overpayment 
InterSETA payables 

Exchange Transactions
Service provider fees outstanding
Sundry payables: accrued expenses
Accrued Expenses
Bonus Provision

12.1

13 INVENTORY

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

15 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As required by Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are 
held.  The weighted average interest rate on short term bank deposits was 3.37% (2012/13: 5.5%). Included in 
the above balance is an amount of R505k (2010/11: R505k) that is reserved for NSF approved projects.

An amount of R519k is held as security by Nedbank, for  the bank guarantee of R444k in favour of Growthpoint 
Properties for the lease agreement deposit.

Employee leave accrued is calculated on the number of leave days outstanding as at 31 March 2013 
and based on the total cost to company.  
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2013/14
R’000

Note 2012/13
R’000

 238 
 (238)

 - 
 - 

  151 

 - 
 - 

  151 

  2 040 
-

2 040

3 028
(2 275)

1 287

2 040

238
(238)

-

-

17.1
17.2

 1 704 
 (318)

 (1 148)
 238 

  246 

 ( 95) 
 ( 95) 
  151 

  3 028
 238

3 266

3 291 
(771)

508

3 028

1 704
(318)

(1 148)

238

Bonus Provision
      Opening Balance
      Utilised
      Change in Estimate
      Closing Balance

Opening balance  
Utilised and recognised as revenue conditions met:
  
    NSF-Scarce Skills Project 

 Closing balance 

17.1 Levies incorrectly recieved from SME’s 

17.2 Bonus Provision

Levies incorrectly recieved from SME’s 
Bonus Provision

15.1

16 GOVERNMENT GRANTS & DONOR FUNDING: SPECIAL PROJECTS  

17 PROVISIONS

        Opening Balance
        Utilised
        Additions

        Closing Balance

        Opening Balance
        Utilised
        Change in Estimate

        Closing Balance

2013/14
R’000

Note 2012/13
R’000

The amount of R2 040 000 (2013:R3 028 000) relates to levies incorrectly contributed by employers, 
and paid over to SARS and DHET, after being exempted from contributing skills development levies.
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2013/14
R’000

Note 2012/13
R’000

 77 712 

 386 
 341 
 20 

 - 
 - 

 (13 130)
 3 959 

 (34)
 142 

 1 547 
 (39 595)
 (1 226)
39 585 

 69 707 

2

8
8
10

 78 113 

 402 
 342 

 - 
 (264)
 (95)

 (9 152)
 (5 301)

 14 
 (4)

 (647)
 28 384 

 - 
 1 456

 93 248 

Net (Deficit)/Surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 
Adjusted for non-cash items: 
Depreciation 
Amortisation 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Increase in provisions 
Special project income recognised 
Adjusted for items separately disclosed 
Investment income 
   Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments 
   (Increase) in inventory 
   Decrease/(Increase) in receivables - non exchange transactions 
   Decrease/(Increase) in receivables - exchange transactions 
   (Decrease)/Increase in payables - non exchange transactions 
   (Decrease)/Increase in provisions 
   (Decrease)/Increase in payables - exchange transactions 
 
Cash generated/(utilised) in operations 

18     RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET SURPLUS
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19 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

20.1 Employer Grant Reserve

20.2 Discretionary Grant Reserve

20.3 Administration reserve

In terms of the PFMA , all surplus funds as at year-end may be forfeited to National Revenue Fund, should an application for retention of 
surplus funds be denied. As at the date of  submission of the financial statements, no response has been received from National Treasury 
regarding approval to retain surplus funds.                                                                                                                                              
    
A contract supporting the President’s initiative to assist DHET with regards to FET infrastracture development was concluded in June 
2014. A letter compelling all SETAs to contribute towards this initiative was received on the 11th July 2014 from DHET. 

As at the date of the  annual financial statements, no applications have been received for the payment of mandatory grants for those 
companies joining the sector post September 2013.        

Notice No. 35940 of 2012 of the Grant Regulations defines a commitment as a contractual obligation that will obligate the SETA to make 
a payment or agreement (written) with specific terms between the SETA and a third party whereby the third party undertakes to perform 
something in relation to a discretionary project for which a SETA will be obliged to make a payment against the discretionary grant. 
FoodBev SETA had no written agreements between itself and employers. GRAP 19 indicates that an item is classified as a commitment 
when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash. The above amounts are all grants 
awarded by the organisation to employers. 

Of the balance of R2,5m available in the administration reserve at the end of March 2014, an amount of R1,2m was approved and 
contracted for operational expenditure         

Of the balance of R304.2m available in the Discretionary Grant Reserve at the end of March 2014, R134.9m is committed for various 
projects listed below. 

Scarce Skills Guide 
SMME Support (LP & NLP) 
Research and Innovation Bursaries
ABET  
Learnerships 
Non Levy Paying Companies  
Support (NGO’s & CBO’s) 
TOTAL 

Opening 
balance 
2012/13
R’000

Description of Grant
Approved 

by Ac-
counting 

Authority & 
Contracted

R’000
Utilised 
R’000

Opening 
balance 
2013/14
R’000

Approved 
by Ac-

counting 
Authority & 
Contracted

R’000
Utilised
R’000

Total
R’000

Contracted 
At Year end

28
 -   
 -   

8 101
84 520

200

92 849

 -   
1 486

472
2 520

55 180
350

60 007

 -   
772
332

1 189
23 616

255

26 163

28
713
139

9 433
116 084

295

126 693

 4 950 
 3 250 

 800 
 95 315 
 2 000 

106 315

 -   
3 453
1 057

982
40 116
1 076

46 684

28
2 210
2 332
9 251

171 283
1 219

186 323

-
1 520

133
1 695

131 543
229

 135 120 

Movement summary 2014
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2013/14
R’000

2013/14
R’000

Note

Note

2012/13
R’000

2012/13
R’000

 1 938 
 1 188 
 3 126 

  86 

  21 
  35 
  56 

  11 
  19
  30 

 57 172 
 -   

 4 697 
 (490) 

 -   
 61 379 

Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to previous year 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year 
Late payments of invoices includes late payment to SARS

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to previous year 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year 

Supply chain management processes not followed 
Reconciliation of Irregular expenditure  
Opening Balance  
Irregular Expenditure - Identified in the current year   
Irregular Expenditure - Identified in the current year relating to prior years
Less: Amounts condoned  
Less: Recovered  
Irregular Expenditure   

 1 778 
 3 125 
 4 903 

  32 

 - 
  21 
  21 

 - 
  11
  11 

 48 651 
 8 521 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 57 172 

Operating Leases
Not later than one year 
Later than one year and not later than five years 

The rental relates to the office building leased from Growthpoint properties entered into on 01 November 
2010 for a five year period ending on 31 October 2015. The lease payments escalate at 9% per annum 
on 01 November of each year. No provision has been made to renew the lease on expiry. 

21

22 MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR,   
 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

22.1 Late payment of invoices

22.2 Payments made without services rendered 

22.3 Irregular expenditure  
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22.3.1 Expenditure incurred in the current year

2013/14  

F2010/11

F2011/12

F2012/13

F2013/14

R000’s

 46 600 

600

257

241

953

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

2012/13  

Description

Description

Action Taken

Action Taken

Expenditure Incurred

Expenditure Incurred

Amount Condoned

Amount Condoned

Amount  Remaining

Amount  Remaining

Indentified in the current 
year relating to previous 
years

Expenditure incurred in 
transgression of the act

1. Due to the Soccer World Cup taking place at the time of the due date of the WSP and consequently the national 
transport and communications infrastructure being assessed to be overtaxed during the time, combined with the 
focus of resources in the food and beverages manufacturing towards maximising production, the Board approved 
a blanket extension of the due date by one month to 31 July 2010. 
 
The Skills Development Grant Regulations requires an extension be granted on a case by case basis. However, in 
this instance, a blanket extension was seen as appropriate due to the extraordinary circumstances. This decision  
resulted in payments of R46.6m for mandatory grants, made to those companies who had submitted WSPs after 
30 June 2010 but before 31 July 2010, being classified as irregular expenditure. 
 
2. Two contracts totaling R600k had been awarded to independent contractors (R300k each) for the execution of 
the ABET project. Although the proper procurement procedures were followed and the CEO and the Chairman of 
the Tender Committee approved the bid, the reasons for the deviation from competitive bidding were not properly 
documented as required by the TR16A6.4.

3. A contract with Ricoh for the supply of photocopy machines and printers expired during the year. The Board took 
a decision to review all contracts and the contract was rolled over after it expired.    
   
4.An amount of R241k was paid to VOX Orion, for the use of premicells that minimises the cost of telephone calls 
to cell phones. This contract was rolled over after it had expired.      
 
5. There were instances where 3 quotes were not obtained for various reasons. A detailed schedule of these 
expenses has been prepared and the Board is to consider the schedule for condonation. 

6. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures     

7. Expired contracts extended without following SCM processes  

8. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures

 4 620 
 3 901 

 4 697 

Disciplinary action 
was taken against the 
responsible employees in 
the previous year 

Disciplinary action 
was taken against the 
responsible employees

 4 697 

 8 521 

 4 697 

 8 521 

 (490)

 -   

 (490)

 -   

 4 207 

 8 521 

 4 207 

 8 521 
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23.1 Interest rate risk

 Sensitivity Analysis 

23.2 Credit risk

In the course of the FoodBev SETA operations it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk.  The FoodBev SETA has 
developed a comprehensive risk strategy in terms of TR 28.1 in order to monitor and control  these risks.  The risk management process 
relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below. 

The FoodBev SETA manages its interest rate risk by investing in the financial institutions approved by National Treasury.  
The FoodBev SETAs exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates on financial instruments at reporting date are as follows:

Should the interest rate increase or decrease by 1%, then the Net Surplus and Discretionary Reserve would increase or decrease by 
R3.0m respectively. (F2012/13: R2.0m)

Financial assets, which potentially subject the FoodBev SETA to the risk of non performance by counter parties and thereby subject to 
credit concentrations of credit risk, consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments and accounts receivable. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of the financial instruments.

Floating rate Fixed Rate Non-interest bearing

 Assets 
 Cash 
 Loans and Accounts receivable 
 Total financial assets 
 Liabilities 
 Borrowings 
 Loans and Accounts payable 
 Total financial liabilities

 Year ended 31 March 2013  
 Total financial assets   
 Total financial liabilities  

Amount              
R’000

 Year ended 31 March 2014  

Effective 
interest 

rate
Amount              
R’000

Weighted 
average 
effective 
interest  

rate     
   %

Weighted 
average 

period for 
which the 

rate is fixed 
in years

Amount              
R’000

Weighted 
average 

period until 
maturity in 

years TOTAL              
R’000

 354 093 

 354 093 

 -

271 718

271 718   

 -

 -

 -   

 -

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 3 
 4 613 
 4 616 

 (44 917)
 (44 917)

 2 
 (5 808)
 (5 806)

 -   

 - 

 354 096 
 4 613 

 358 709 

 -   
 (44 917)
 (44 917)

 271 720 
 (5 808)

 265 912 



56

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
2013/2014 

The ageing of Trade & Other Receivable from non exchange transactions:  

Gross

Gross

F2013/14

F2013/14

F2012/13

F2012/13

Impairment

Impairment

Gross

Gross

Impairment

Impairment

  -
  37 

 - 
 4 576 

 354 093 

 45 351 

5 760

 45 351 

 (6 004) 

 45 351 

 (6 004) 

-

-

-

-

-

-

Not past due
Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 120 days
More than one year

Not past due

Trade & other receivables that are past due, are due from employers who have been invoiced because of their non-conformance to 
discretionary grant contracts for various learnership programmes. These companies have been making regular SDL payments to SARS.

The FoodBev SETA manage limits of its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions 
approved by National Treasury through the approval of their investment policy in terms of Treasury Regulation. 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 (3 994)

 - 

 - 
  373 

 - 
 4 715 

 271 718 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 (3 736) 

 -  

23.3 Liquidity Risk

Fair values

In the course of the FoodBev SETA operations it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk. The FoodBev SETA has 
developed a comprehensive risk strategy in terms of TR 28.1 in order to monitor and control  these risks. The risk management process 
relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below. 

The FoodBev SETAs financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other receivables, and account and 
other payables.  No financial instruments were carried at fair value.

No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for all financial 
instruments.       

Carrying 
Amount

Carrying 
Amount

F2013/14

F2012/13

Contractual 
Cash Flows

Contractual 
Cash Flows

6 months or 
less

6 months or 
less

6 - 12 months

6 - 12 months

1 - 2 years

1 - 2 years

More than 2 years

More than 2 years

Trade and 
other Payables 
from exchange 
transactions

Trade and 
other Payables 
from exchange 
transactions
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Department of Higher Education & Training (DHET) is the executive authority of FoodBev SETA. For the year FoodBev SETA has 
received an amount of R249.7m from DHET for Skills Development Levies,Interest and Penalties collected by SARS on behalf of DHET.

Transactions with other SETAs in R’000s

InterSETA transactions and balances arise due to the movement of employers from one SETA to another.  During the current year 
FoodBev SETA received R0k from  other SETAs and FoodBev SETA transferred R0k to other SETAs.  At year end there is an amount of 
R0k payable to other SETAs and an amount of R0k receivable from other SETAs, as listed below. 

Transactions with Employers of the members of Board  in R’000s 
  
The transactions below arise due to the nature of the Board members’ employment and the fact that the employers contribute Skills 
Development Levy to the FoodBev SETA. The transactions listed below are for the payment of mandatory and discretionary grants.

Transactions with other national public entities in R’000s  
  
The transactions below arise due to the nature of the Board members’ employment and the fact that the employers contribute Skills 
Development Levy to the FoodBev SETA. The transactions listed below are for the payment of mandatory and discretionary grants.

F2013/14 F2013/14 F2012/13 F2012/13

SERVICES SETA
FASSET
W&RSETA
HWSETA
THETA
AGRISETA
CHIETA
FIETA / FP&M SETA
CATHSSETA
TETA
Total Transfers In

14
-
-
-
-
-

72
-
-

32
118

Gerhardus Hamman
Keith Smith
Tienie Ehlers

Rhodes Food Group
Sea Harvest Corporation
SAB - Isando
TOTAL

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1 058
1 019

15 758
17 835

 121 
 113 

 5 793 
6 026

1 179
1 132

21 551
23 861

Eskom
Telkom

1 442
2 062

35 971
39 475

98
148

14 
-
-
-
-
-

72 
-
-

32 
118

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
72

-
-
-

219
-
-
-
6

297

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

52 
-

134 
-
-
3

58 
-
5 
- 

252

2
2

71
5
-

405
-
-

11
-

496

Transfers In

Employer

Transfers In

Total

Name of Entity

Transfers Out

Board
Member

Transfers Out

Levies
Received

Amount Spent

Receivables

Mandatory
Grant

ReceivablesPayables

Discretionary
Grant

Payables
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No provision has been made for taxation as the FoodBev SETA is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax Act.

In the application of the SETAs accounting policies management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.    
   
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.       
       
Key sources of estimation uncertainty   
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.   
    
Useful	lives	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	       
The SETA reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual reporting period, refer note 10 for the carrying 
values of property, plant and equipment. The SETA is currently established until 31 March 2016 as approved by the Minister of DHET.  
 

27 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS       
       
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements there are Standards and Interpretations in issue but not effective.     
    
These include the following Standards and Interpretations that are applicable to the FoodBev SETA and may or may not have an impact on future 
financial statements.       

26 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Related Party Disclosure

Segment Reporting  
Transfer of Function between Entities Under Common Control  
Transfer of Function between Entities Not Under Common Control  
Mergers 

GRAP 20: Related party
GRAP 20 : Related Party. This standard prescribe  the disclosure of  information relevant to draw attention to the possibility that the SETA financial 
position and surplus/deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties. It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact future 
disclosures. 
 
GRAP 25: Employee Benefits 
This standard prescribes the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits. It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact future 
disclosures.      
The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet applicable to the SETA and will not have an impact on future financial 
statements:

GRAP 20

GRAP 18
GRAP 105
GRAP 106
GRAP 107

Not specified

Not yet Effective 
Not yet Effective 
Not yet Effective 
Not yet Effective 

Reference Number

Reference Number

Effective date, commencing 
on or after

Effective date,  
commencing on or after

Title

Title
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued) 
      
The FoodBev SETA shall, where applicable, apply standards of GRAP for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or 
after a date to be determined by the Minister of Finance in a regulation to be published in accordance with section  91(1)(b) for the PFMA 
and as indicated in the table above.  
   
The following are the objectives of the accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet effective as of the reporting date, 
together with any significant impact they may have in future reporting periods.      
 
Related Party Disclosure       
The Standard defines related parties, prescribes the identification and the disclosure of transactions and balances between the entity and 
its related parties.       
It is not expected that the standard will significantly impact future accounting and disclosure as the FoodBev SETA currently discloses 
such transactions and balances in its Annual Financial Statements and the Annual Report. 
 
Revenue from Non-exchange transactions       
The Standard prescribes requirements for the financial reporting of revenue arising from non-exchange transactions, other than non-
exchange transactions that give rise to an entity combination. 
       
The Standard deals with issues that need to be considered in recognising and measuring revenue from non-exchange transactions, 
including the identification of contributions from owners.  
     
It is not expected that the standard will significantly impact future accounting and disclosure as the FoodBev SETA already accounts for 
and discloses revenue from non-exchange transactions in terms of this standard.

Presentation of Budget information in financial statements       
This Standard requires a comparison of budget amounts and the actual amounts arising from execution of the budget to be included in 
the financial statements of entities that are required to, or elect to, make publicly available their approved budget(s) and for which they 
are, therefore, held publicly accountable.        
It also requires disclosure of an explanation of the reasons for material differences between the budget and actual amounts.  
 
Compliance with the requirements of this Standard will ensure that entities discharge their accountability obligations and enhance the 
transparency of their financial statements by demonstrating compliance with the approved budget(s) for which they are held publicly 
accountable and, where the budget(s) and the financial statements are prepared on the same basis, their financial performance in 
achieving the budgeted results. 
       
It is not expected that the standard will significantly impact future disclosure as the FoodBev SETA already makes the relevant 
disclosures in the annual financial statements and the standard does not require adjustments to comparative amounts.   
    
Employee Benefits       
The Standard provides principles for accounting for short term and long term post employee retirement benefits provided by the entity to 
its employees, former employees and their dependants.  
        
It is not expected that the standard will significantly impact future disclosure as the FoodBev SETA operates and is expected to continue 
to operate a defined contribution plan due to the short nature (5 years) of its operating licence.     
   
Financial Instruments       
The Standard provides principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments.   
    
It is not expected that the standard will significantly impact on future disclosure because the FoodBev SETA has basic financial 
instruments such as cash, deposits with banks and debtors and creditors. The FoodBev SETA does not have complex financial 
instruments such as investments in bonds or equity instruments, borrowings (typically loans and overdraft facilities) and derivatives.
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28 NOTES TO THE COMPARISON OF ACTUAL AND BUDGET       
 
Legislation requires that the SETA annually, in September submits a budget to the Minister for Approval. Any subsequent changes 
required to the initial budget are approved by FoodBev’s Accounting Authority. 

28.1 Skills Development Levy: Income from non-exchange transactions  
Levy Receipts were 4.68% more than budgeted. This was as a result of SARS adjustments and employers who joined the SETA during 
the year.  
      
28.2 Skills Development Levy: penalties and interest from non-exchange transactions 
Income from penalties and interest arise when employers fail to submit their returns as require by legislation. These amounts typically 
vary significantly year on year. Due to variability of these amounts, it is very difficult to project the budget.     
   
28.3 Investment income and other income   
The income is made up mostly of investment in the First National Bank investment account and money held in Corporation for Public 
deposits at South African Reserve Bank.  These funds yielded additional investment income.
   
28.4 Employer grant and project expenses        
The under expenditure was as a result of vacant positions in management that were filled later in the year . As a result the SETA was not 
able to function at its optimum level.       
       
28.5 Administration expenses       
Administration expenditure is limited to 10% of levies received. The legislation limit has not been exceeded and the savings will be utilised 
to fund sector skills priorities through various projects.       
       
28.6 Donor Funding       
A contract supporting the President’s initiative to assist DHET with regards to FET infrastracture development was concluded in June 
2014. A letter compelling all SETAs to contribute towards this initiative was received on the 11th July 2014 from DHET.   
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ABET     Adult Basic Education and Training  

ATR                     Annual TrainingReport

BBBEE    Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment

BEE     Black Economic Empowerment

CBO     Community-based Organisation

CGCSA    Consumer Goods Council of South Africa

CEO     Chief Executive Officer

DHET                   Department of Higher Education and Training

DOL     Department of Labour

EEA     Employment Equity Act

ETQA     Education and Training Quality Assurance Body 

FAWU     Food and Allied Workers Union

FEDCRAW                Federal Council of Retail and Allied Workers

FET     Further Education and Training

FoodBev SETA    Food and Beverages Manufacturing Sector Education and Training Authority

GAAP     Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

GDS     Growth and Development Summit

GRAP     Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HET     Higher Education and Training

ISOE     Institute of Sectoral or Occupational Excellence

MOU     Memorandum of Understanding 

NGO     Non-governmental Organisation

NLPE    Non-levy-paying Employers

NQF     National Qualifications Framework

NSDS     National Skills Development Strategy

NSF     National Skills Fund

NUFWBSAW    National Union of Food, Wine, Beverages, Spirits and Allied Workers

NVC     New Venture Creation 

OHS     Occupationa Health and Safety

PAYE    Pay As You Earn

QCTO                              Quality Council for Trades and Occupations

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS
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QMS      Quality management system

SAAFOST     South African Association for Food Science and Technology 

SAB      South African Breweries

SAMPRO     SA Milk Processors Organisation

SAQA      South African Qualifications Authority

SARS      South African Revenue Service

SASSDA     Southern African Stainless Steel Development Association

SDF      Skills Development Facilitator

SETA      Sector Education and Training Authority

SGB      Standards Generating Body

SLA      Service Level Agreement

SME      Small and Micro Enterprise

SMME      Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise

TEEC      Training and Employment Equity Committee

WE      Work experience

WSP      Workplace Skills Plan
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NOTES 
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